
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

July 3, 2018

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: June 26, 2018 Minutes and Summary Minutes

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

3. 9:10 a.m. Human Resources 

4. 9:15 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator (5 min)
a. RE: County Board Notification of Outdoor Heritage Fund Proposals
b. RE: Retirement Letter
c. RE: Justice Center Contracts:
d. 1. Ford Metro, Inc.
e. 2. Right Way Caulking
f. 3. Peterson Companies

5. 9:30 a.m. Jennifer Nelson, VP of Development with SMIF (15 min)

6. 10:00 a.m. West Jefferson Ordinance Public Hearing (15 min)

7. 10:15 a.m. SULP Ordinance Public Hearing (15 min)

8. 10:30 a.m. Environmental Services Workshop

9. Commissioner Committee Reports

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 1 / 44



10. Future Meetings

11. CHB Meeting at 1:00 pm in Waterville

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 2 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: June 26, 2018 Minutes and Summary Minutes

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 3 / 44



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
June 26, 2018

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, June 26, 2018 
at 9:00 a.m. at the Courthouse in Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: John 
King, Dave Gliszinski and Steve Rohlfing. Joe Connolly and Lance Wetzel were excused. 
County Attorney Brent Christian and County Administrator Darrell Pettis were also present. 

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the agenda.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the consent agenda:

1. Approved the June 19, 2018 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
2. Approved tobacco licenses for: 

a) Froggy’s Liquor Store 
b) Little Dandy
c) Mac’s Green Mill Bar 
d) Beer Oil and Tire

Casi Story appeared before the Board to introduce the new 4H intern, Cassidy Worrell.

Neil Pekrul with COVIA (formerly UNIMIN) appeared before the Board with the 2017 Annual 
Report for the Kasota Plant.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2018 Performance Bond in the amount of $3,071,827 for the Kasota Plant.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2017 Annual Report for the Kasota Plant.

Pat Simonette with COVIA (formerly UNIMIN) appeared before the Board with the 2017 
Annual Report for the Ottawa Plant.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2018 Performance Bond in the amount of $2,905,695 for the Ottawa Plant. 

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2017 Annual Report for the Ottawa Plant.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
a donation from COVIA in the amount of $7,500 for Ottawa area historical preservation projects.

Tyler Luethje, Parks Director appeared before the Board with ISG staff, Amanda Prosser and 
Patrick O’Keefe to present an update on the Lake Washington Park & Campground.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 4 / 44



On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2018 Lake Washington Regional Park and Campground Master Plan.

Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources appeared before the Board with numerous items for 
approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
regular status to Tyler Luethje, full time Parks Director/Ag Inspector in the Parks Department, 
effective June 26, 2018. Tyler has completed the one-year probationary period. 

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to accept the resignation of Erica Miller, full time Office Support Specialist in Human Services, 
effective July 6, 2018. 

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to post and request the merit list for a full time Office Support Specialist in Human Services, 
Grade 3, Step 4 at $17.10 per hour. 

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to accept the resignation of Jennifer Wetzel, full time Administrative Assistant II in the 
Attorney’s Office, effective June 18, 2018. 

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to post and advertise for a full time Administrative Assistant II in the Attorney’s Office, Grade 4, 
Step 4 at $18.12 per hour.

Cindy Shaughnessy, Public Health Director appeared before the Board with several items for 
discussion and approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
an Evidence Based Home Visiting Grant Memorandum of Agreement.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to pay the Le Sueur County portion of a software license deposit to Tech Tronix for Food, Pools 
and Lodging Services in the amount of $1,000.

Darrell Pettis, County Administrator appeared before the Board with several items for discussion 
and approval.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and authorized the Board Chair and County Administrator to sign an Appointment Order for 
appointing members to a Joint Drainage Authority Board for County Ditch 54.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the BKV proposal for Furniture, Fixture and Equipment Design Services for Phase 1 of the Le 
Sueur County Justice Center.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 5 / 44



Dale Korbel, Kevin Prochaska and Sue Prchal with Montgomery Township appeared before the 
Board to discuss safety concerns at the intersection of CR 3 and Hwy 99 due to poor visibility.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
and directed staff to send a letter of support to address minimizing the safety concerns at the CR3 
and Hwy 99 intersection to MnDOT.

Commissioner Committee Reports:

Commissioner Rohlfing attended a Park Board meeting and a Region Nine meeting.

Commissioner Gliszinski attended a Justice Center progress meeting.

Commissioner King attended a Park Board meeting, Justice Center progress meeting, and a 
Transit Board meeting.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, July 3, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 6 / 44



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, June 26, 2018
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us.
●Approved the agenda.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●Approved the consent agenda.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●Approved the 2018 Performance Bond for the COVIA Kasota Plant.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●Approved the 2017 Annual Report for the COVIA Kasota Plant.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●Approved the 2018 Performance Bond for the COVIA Ottawa Plant.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the 2017 Annual Report for the COVIA Ottawa Plant.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●Approved a donation from COVIA in the amount of $7,500.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●Approved the 2018 Lake Washington Regional Park and Campground Master Plan.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●Approved regular status to Tyler Luethje in the Parks Department.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the resignation of Erica Miller in Human Services.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski) 
●Approved to post and request the merit list for a full time Office Support Specialist in Human Services. 
(Gliszinski-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the resignation of Jennifer Wetzel in the Attorney’s Office.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski) 
●Approved to post and advertise for a full time Administrative Assistant II in the Attorney’s 
Office.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●Approved an Evidence Based Home Visiting Grant Memorandum of Agreement.(Gliszinski-Rohlfing)
●Approved to pay the Le Sueur County portion of a software license deposit to Tech Tronix.(Rohlfing-
Gliszinski)
●Approved an Appointment Order for County Ditch 54.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
●Approved the BKV proposal for Furniture, Fixture and Equipment Design Services.(Gliszinski-
Rohlfing)
●Approved to send a letter of support to MnDOT regarding the CR3 and Hwy 99 intersection.(Rohlfing-
Gliszinski)
●Adjourned until Tuesday, July 3, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.(Rohlfing-Gliszinski)
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator  
Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 7 / 44

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 8 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:10 a.m. Human Resources 

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 9 / 44



 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057 

Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607 

Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director 

Human Resources   
 

 
 

 
 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
AGENDA ITEMS 

July 3, 2018 
 
 

Recommendation to accept the resignation from Bryan Tupy, full time Correctional 
Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office effective July 12, 2018.   
 
Recommendation to post and advertise for two full time Correctional Officer/Dispatchers in 
the Sheriff’s Office, Grade 6, Step 4 at $20.35 per hour.   
 
  
 
 
 

  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 10 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 4

9:15 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator (5 min)

RE: County Board Notification of Outdoor Heritage Fund Proposals

RE: Retirement Letter

RE: Justice Center Contracts:

1. Ford Metro, Inc.

2. Right Way Caulking

3. Peterson Companies

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 11 / 44



Enhance

Northern Tallgrass Prairie National Wildlife Refuge, Phase X Protect in Fee w/o PILT

Protect in Easement

Kittson DNR Grasslands - Phase XI Enhance

DNR WMA and SNA Acquisition, Phase XI Protect in Fee with PILT

MN Prairie Recovery Project Phase IX Restore

Protect in Fee with PILT

Enhance

Protect in Fee w/o PILT

Northern Tallgrass Prairie National Wildlife Refuge, Phase X Protect in Fee w/o PILT

Protect in Easement

Lac qui Parle Accelerating the Waterfowl Production Area Program - Phase XI Protect in Fee w/o PILT

Accelerating the Wildlife Management Area Program - Phase XI Protect in Fee with PILT

DNR Grasslands - Phase XI Enhance

DNR WMA and SNA Acquisition, Phase XI Protect in Fee with PILT

Marsh Lake Phase III Enhance

MN Prairie Recovery Project Phase IX Protect in Fee with PILT

Enhance

Protect in Fee w/o PILT

Restore

Northern Tallgrass Prairie National Wildlife Refuge, Phase X Protect in Fee w/o PILT

Protect in Easement

Lake DNR Aquatic Habitat Restoration and Enhancement Enhance

Knife River Habitat Rehabilitation-Phase IV Enhance

Minnesota Forest Recovery Project: Phase I Enhance

Minnesota Forests for the Future Phase VII Enhance

Protect in Easement

Minnesota Trout Unlimited Coldwater Fish Habitat Enhancement and Restoration, Phase 11 Enhance

Le Sueur DNR Aquatic Habitat Restoration and Enhancement Enhance

DNR Grasslands - Phase XI Enhance

Lincoln Accelerating the Waterfowl Production Area Program - Phase XI Protect in Fee w/o PILT

DNR Grasslands - Phase XI Enhance

DNR WMA and SNA Acquisition, Phase XI Protect in Fee with PILT

MN Prairie Recovery Project Phase IX Protect in Fee with PILT

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 12 / 44

https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA04.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PRE01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA03.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA04.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/WA01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA02.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PRE01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/WRE02.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA03.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA04.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/HRE02.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/HRE04.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/FRE03.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/FA03.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/HRE01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/HRE02.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PRE01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/WA01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PRE01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA01.pdf
https://www.lsohc.leg.mn/FY2020/requests/PA03.pdf


Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 13 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 5

9:30 a.m. Jennifer Nelson, VP of Development with SMIF (15 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 14 / 44



 

May 2018 
 
Darrell Pettis 
Le Sueur County 
Courthouse 
88 Park Ave S 
Le Center, MN 56057-1600  
 
Mr. Pettis and County Board, 
 
Thank you for your generous support in 2018. Because of you, 
SMIF is able to change lives in southern Minnesota but we still 
need your help to move the needle on progress.  
 
Did you know: 
 

 There is a 28% shortage of spaces available for 
child care in southern Minnesota. This impacts not 
only families and children but also the workforce.  

 99.5% of businesses in Minnesota are considered 
small businesses. This segment requires the most 
support to grow and prosper.  

 An estimated $7 billon is going to transfer 
generations in southern Minnesota by 2030. How is 
your community planning to capture these dollars?  
 

SMIF is addressing these issues, but we need your continued 
support to help us assist our youngest residents, aspiring 
entrepreneurs and local community initiatives. Without you, we 
would not have been able to accomplish everything listed on 
the accompanying factsheet. This is only a small portion of 
what our donors have made possible. 
 
Your support will change lives. Please consider increasing 
your gift to $3,500 in 2019 to keep this essential work in 
our region moving forward. And as always, if you have any 
questions or concerns please feel free to reach out.  
 
With sincere gratitude, 
 
 
 
Tim Penny 
SMIF President & CEO 
 
 

 
Your last gift of  

$3,000 
allowed SMIF to invest  

$39,000 
into your community! 
(Le Sueur County ROI: $1 donated = 

$13 invested) 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 15 / 44



$1

525 Florence Avenue  l  PO Box 695  l  Owatonna, MN  55060  l  507.455.3215  l  www.smifoundation.org

$13=For every donation of 
from  Le Sueur County

is invested back into 
Le Sueur County 
communities.*

*Includes grants, loans & programming

Le Sueur County 
Investments

20 LOANS
$1.4 million to Le Sueur County entrepreneurs

115 GRANTS
$553,000 to support community initiatives

$5 million invested annually to the 20 counties of 
south central and southeastern Minnesota

invested by SMIF in Le Sueur County 
through grants, loans, and programming for 
stronger kids, businesses and communities

Since 1986, Southern Minnesota Initiative 
Foundation has leveraged local investments & 

partnerships to create a stronger Le Sueur County:

$3.4 million
$270,000  in local donations to SMIF 

We envision southern Minnesota as a prosperous and growing region with vibrant communities, innovative and successful 
economies, and engaged and valued citizens. To achieve this vision, Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation, a regional 
development and philanthropic organization, fosters economic and community vitality in 20 counties of southern Minnesota 
through a culture of collaboration and partnership. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 16 / 44



Loans & Equity Investments  Supporting local entrepreneurs & creating jobs

Grants  Investments in economic development, early childhood and community vitality

Farmhouse Market LLC, New Prague Organic, locally-sourced 24/7 food market

Whitewater Creek Grain & Feed Incorporated, Waterville Buying, storage, feed sales, & marketing services to farm producers

Odenthal Meats, New Prague Local meat market

Herrmann Law Office PLLC, New Prague General practice law firm 

Rolco Incorporated, Kasota Plastic injection molding

New Prague Area Early Childhood Initiative Create social-emotional book bags for area preschool teachers

Tri-City United Public Schools, Montgomery Hundreds of books awarded through multiple literacy grants

Making a Difference  
Turning business dreams into reality

One of SMIF’s newest loan clients, Chabelita’s 
Yummy Foods and Fruits, brings more dining 
options to Le Sueur residents. Raul and Maria 
Castellanos started out with candy and fruit salad, 
and now provide a full menu of Mexican dishes. 
“SMIF’s loan helped us purchase a range hood so 
we can start preparing cooked food,” said Raul 
Castellanos. “People have been supportive of us, 
because they want some other dining options.”

New Prague Chamber of Commerce 35 gallons of paint awarded for mural

New Prague Area Schools Pre-K to Grade 3 Alignment grant

Waterville-Elysian-Morristown Public Schools Support for WEM new parent needs & services survey

AmeriCorps LEAP Initiative, Le Center Members helping with social emotional skill development

Affiliate Funds  Increasing rural philanthropy 

Community Collaborations  Bringing communities together for change

Elysian Community Foundation

Le Sueur Community Wellness Collaborative

Le Sueur Community Foundation 

New Prague Early Childhood Initiative (Started in 2015)

Tri-City United  Early Childhood Initiative (Started in 2008)

LCS Precision Molding, Waterville Plastic injection molding specializing in window, door, appliance, 
electronics, and automotive industry applications

New Prague Area Community Foundation 

Sakatah Area Foundation

Waterville Friends of the Library

Chabelita’s Yummy Foods & Fruits, Le Sueur Mexican restaurant

Quality Child Care Program, Le Sueur Increasing quality childcare through provider training

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 17 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:00 a.m. West Jefferson Ordinance Public Hearing (15 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 18 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 1

LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN
WEST JEFFERSON SUBORDINATE SERVICE DISTRICT

ORDINANCE NO.___

The County Board of Le Sueur County Ordains:

CHAPTER 725 GENERAL PROVISIONS

725.1 Title 
This Ordinance shall be known and referenced as the “West Jefferson Subordinate Service 
District Ordinance.”

725.2 Statutory Authority. 
This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to Minn. Statutes Chapter 375B.

725.3 Purpose and Intent 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish methods for setting fees, determining levels, methods and 
cost of operational oversight, set performance standards and determine responsibilities and obligations of 
the citizen participants, and the West Jefferson Subordinate Service District.

725.4 Definitions and Rules of Construction 
Except as may otherwise be provided or clearly implied by context, all terms shall be given their 
commonly accepted definitions. The term shall means mandatory and the term may is permissive. The 
following terms shall have the definitions given to them:

“Account”
All unsettled obligations of a person to the District, including unpaid User Fees, loss, damage, costs, 
expense, charges and fees incurred by the District for cleaning, repair and/or replacement of any part 
of the Sewer System or other District property caused or incurred by said person.

“Board”
The Le Sueur County, Minnesota Board of Commissioners.

“Building Sanitary Drain”
Building Sanitary Drain means that part of the piping of the drainage system which receives the 
discharge from soil and waste pipes inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the Building Sewer 
beginning at least one foot outside the building footings.

“Building Sewer”
“Building Sewer” means that part of the drainage system which extends from the end of the Building 
Drain and conveys its’ discharge to the grinder station connection, the beginning of the District Sewer 
System.

“Capital Costs”
The reasonable and necessary costs and expenses incurred by the District in planning, designing, 
financing and constructing the Sewer System and obtaining service, including but not limited to costs and 
expenses for obtaining necessary permits, licenses, approvals and grants for design and construction 
costs; fees for legal and consulting services and the acquisition of such Sewer System and service.

“CBOD”
Carbonaceous Biochemical Oxygen Demand the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 19 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 2

of organic matter, under standard laboratory procedures in five days at 20 degrees centigrade expressed 
in terms of weight and concentration (mg/l).

“Clean Water Act”
The Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387, and as amended from time to time.

“Cooling Water”
Water discharged from any use such as air conditioning, cooling or refrigeration, or during which the 
only pollutant added to the water is heat.

“Connection Charge”
Charge to a user for physical connection to the sewer system. Connection charges may include 
capital cost, administrative fees, interest charges and other charges as required to construct, 
maintain, operate and develop reserve funds for future maintenance of the system.

“Debt Service”
The principal and interest necessary to pay the bonded indebtedness for the construction and 
installation of the Sewer System.

“Debt Service Charge”
The charge related to the principal and interest necessary to pay the bonded indebtedness.

“District”
The West Jefferson Subordinate Service District formed by Le Sueur County for the purposes described 
in this Ordinance.

“Domestic Waste”
Wastes from residential users.

“Flow”
The quantity of wastewater expressed in gallons or cubic feet per 24-hour period.

“Full Connection”
Those properties that connect to the Sewer System and discharge wastewater to the Sewer System once 
it is operational.

“Greywater”
Sewage that does not contain toilet wastes.

“Grinder Station”
Pump station installed to pump wastewater from Building sanitary sewer to the District Sewer System. 
Grinder station to include the pump basin, pump, pump controls and electrical wiring from pump control 
to pump, and other appurtenances. The Grinder Station is considered to be part of the District Sewer 
System.

“Indirect Discharge”
The introduction of pollutants or wastes into the Sewer System from any non-domestic source regulated 
under Section 301 (b), (c), or (d) of the Clean Water Act.

“Infiltration”
Water entering the sewage system (including building drains and pipes) from the ground through sources 
such as, but not limited to, defective pipes, pipe joints, connections and manhole walls.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 20 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 3

“Inflow”
Water, other than wastewater, that enters a sewer system (including building drains) from sources such 
as, but not limited to, roof leaders, cellar drains, yard and area drains, foundation drains, drains from 
springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross-connections from storm sewers, catch basins, surface 
runoff, street wash waters or drainage.

“Infiltration/Inflow (I/I)”
The total quantity of water from both infiltration and inflow.

“Initial Project”
Construction project to build the West Jefferson Lake Sewer System, with up to 140 connections and 
connect to the City of Cleveland’s Wastewater Treatment Ponds.

“MPCA”
Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.

“Multiple Unit User”
Any person, authorized under agreement with the District, who discharges wastewater to the Sewer 
System from multiple sources through one connection to the system, i.e. a campground or other multi 
- unit property use.

“Natural Outlet”
Any outlet in a water course, pond, ditch, lake or other body of surface water or groundwater.

“Normal Domestic Strength Waste”
Wastewater that is primarily introduced by residential users with a biochemical oxygen demand (CBOD) 
concentrations not greater than 220mg/L and total suspended solid (TSS) concentrations not greater than 
240mg/L.

“NPDES Permit”
(National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit) (Also “wastewater discharge permit”) Any 
permit or requirement issued by the MPCA pursuant to the Clean Water Act for the purpose of 
regulating the discharge of wastewater, industrial wastes, or other wastes under Section 402 of the Act.

“Partial Connection”
Those properties that construct a portion of the individual service facilities required to provide 
connection to the Sewer System under the initial projects, but do not actually connect to the system 
under the initial project, resulting in a stub or connection point at the property line.

“Person”
Includes any individual, firm, association, organization, partnership, business trust, company or 
corporation, the state or any agency or institution thereof, and any municipality, governmental 
subdivision, or other entity, including any officer or governing or managing body thereof.

“POTW”
Publicly Owned Treatment Works - the treatment works as defined by Section 212 of the Clean Water 
Act which is owned by the municipality (as defined by Section 502(4) of the Act). This includes any 
devices and systems used in the storage, treatment, recycling, and reclamation of municipal sewage or 
industrial wastes of a liquid nature. It also includes sewers, pipes, and other conveyances if they convey 
wastewater to a POTW plant. This also includes the City of Cleveland Water Treatment Ponds (WTP).

“Sewage”
Waste produced by toilets, bathing, laundry, water treatment devices, water conditioning devices, culinary 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 21 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 4

operations, or any waste derived from any potable water source, or the floor drains associated with these 
sources.

“Sewer Availability Charge (SAC)”
A development impact fee assessed for availability, reserve capacity, sewage treatment, and connection 
rights to the Sewer System. The charge shall be adjusted annually and shall account for interest and 
finance costs.

“Sewer Charges”
Means all fees paid by Users of the Sewer System to pay for the treatment cost, cost of OM&R for the 
Sewer System, and any future allocated debt service costs in addition to any additional fees pursuant to 
this Code.

“Sewer System”
The system of grinder station pumps, meters, structures, pipes and appurtenances used for collecting, 
transporting and conveying Wastewater and in some contexts also for treating and disposing of 
Wastewater. In this Code, “Sewer System” refers to the District's Sewer System, unless the context 
indicates otherwise.

“Storm Water”
Any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation and resulting there from.

“User”
Any person who discharges wastewater, or causes, or permits the discharge or placement of 
wastewater, into the West Jefferson Lake Sanitary Sewer System.

“User Fees”
Refers to the fees paid by all Users of the Sewer System for the treatment of wastewater.

“Wastewater”
The liquid and water-carried domestic wastes from dwellings, together with any grey water, 
groundwater, surface water, and storm water that may be present, whether treated or untreated, which 
is discharged into or permitted to enter the Sewer System.

CHAPTER 726 DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

726.1 Office and Mailing Address 
The mailing address of the District is:                       The physical address of the District is:
West Jefferson Subordinate Service District          West Jefferson Subordinate Service District
Environmental Services Office                                   Environmental Services Office
Le Sueur County                                                         Le Sueur County
88 South Park Ave.                                                     515 South Maple Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057                                                 Le Center, MN 56057
Direct Dial 507-357-8538                                           Fax 507-357-8541

726.2 Advisory Committee 

726.02.01    The Board shall appoint an advisory committee. Primary responsibilities of the 
committee are to review and recommend annual budget and annual rates, and to provide 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 22 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 5

recommendations on any policies or procedures as assigned by the Board. Although the 
Advisory Committee is a recommending body rather than a decision-making body, the 
Advisory Committee shall follow the open meeting law (Minn. Stat. Chap. 13D).

726.02.02    Number of members. The Advisory Committee shall consist of three (3) 
members. The members shall be property owners within the District, appointed by the 
County Board.

726.02.03   Term length and reappointment. The term of each member shall be for 
three (3) years. Each member may be eligible for reappointment, for not more than 
three (3) consecutive three (3) year terms.

The Board will arrange and determine the terms of the first advisory 
committee members appointed after the District's creation to expire on the 1st 
business day in January as follows:

The term of one (1) member will expire in the 2nd calendar year after the 
year in which the members are appointed: 

The term of the one (1) other member will expire in the 3rd calendar year 
after the year in which the members are appointed; and

The term of the remaining one (1) member will expire in the 4th calendar 
year after the year in which the member is appointed.

726.02.04   Compensation. No compensation shall be made to the advisory committee 
members.

726.02.05 Meetings. The Advisory Committee shall, at a minimum, hold an annual 
meeting in June. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be to provide feedback to the 
Board in advance of its budget planning process.

CHAPTER 727 CONSTRUCTION OF DISTRICT SEWER SYSTEM

727.1 Building Sanitary Sewers and Connections 

727.01.01  No person, unless authorized, shall uncover, make any connections with, or 
disturb any portion of the Sewer System without first obtaining a sanitary sewer permit 
from the District. The initial construction contract shall be considered written permission 
for work performed under the initial construction project. 

727.01.02   For all future connections and work done to Partial Connections after the conclusion 
of the initial construction project, all costs and expenses incident to the installation and 
connection of the Building Sewer to the Sewer System shall be the responsibility of the owner.

727.01.03  A separate and independent Building Sewer and pressure grinder pump (or 
similar device approved by the District) shall be required for every property. Where 
separate living quarters or units exist within a multi-family residential unit on a single 
property such as an apartment building, duplex, triplex, townhome structure or other multi-
family structure, an alternate pump or multiple pumps may be required. Any additional 
costs for an alternate pump or additional pump shall be borne by the property owner. Each 
separate Building Sewer shall be separately connected to the Sewer System unless a special 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 23 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 6

permit is obtained from the District for proven extenuating circumstances. Any such 
special permit shall require a written agreement between the property owners and the 
written consent of the District, allocating among the applicable property owners the costs 
of construction and maintenance of any common Building Sewer or pressure grinder pump.
 

727.01.04  Existing Building Sewers may be used in connections with new buildings 
only when they are found, upon examination and testing by the District, to meet all 
requirements of Le Sueur County Code and ordinances.

727.01.05  The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a Building Sewer, and 
the method to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing, and backfilling 
the trench shall conform to the requirements of the Minnesota Building Code, Minnesota 
Plumbing Code, and all other applicable rules and regulations. In the absence of specific 
Code provisions, the materials and procedures established by the City Engineers 
Association of Minnesota (CEAM) and the American Society of Testing and Materials 
(ASTM) shall apply.

727.01.06   No person shall make connection of roof downspouts, exterior foundation 
drains, area way drains, sump pumps, or other source of surface runoff or groundwater to a 
Building Sewer or building drain that is connected in any manner whatsoever to the District 
Sewer System.

727.01.07 All private septic systems and other similar facilities shall be properly 
abandoned or removed at the time connection to the Sewer System is made, unless 
alternate use is permitted by Le Sueur County.

727.01.08  As a condition of connection to the Sewer System, the District shall be allowed 
to inspect the work at any stage of construction and, in any event, the applicant for 
connection to the Sewer System shall notify the District when the work is ready for formal 
inspection. No underground portions shall be covered before the final inspection is 
completed, and all connections shall be made under the supervision of the District or its 
representative.

727.01.09  Any new connections to the Sewer System shall be prohibited unless the 
District determines that sufficient capacity, (including but not limited to flow, CBOD, 
and suspended solids) is available in all downstream portions of the system and at the 
POTW.

727.01.10  New connections shall also be required to have a connection allocation 
available as defined in the agreement with the City of Cleveland.

CHAPTER 728 USE OF DISTRICT SEWER SYSTEM

728.1 Connection 

728.01.01 All properties within the West Jefferson Lake Subordinate Service District must 
connect to the District Sewer System at the time of initial construction or have a Partial 
Connection installed at the time of initial construction.

728.01.02 As a condition of connection, each User shall dedicate a utility easement to the 
District for the location of the necessary portion of Sewer System to service the User’s 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 24 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 7

property. 

728.2 Prohibited Discharges

728.02.01 No user shall discharge, either directly or indirectly, any flows or materials 
prohibited in the Cleveland City Code of Ordinances and the City’s WRF NPDES Permit 
along with any of the following:

728.02.01.01 All waste of any type generated from any source outside the 
District. 

728.02.01.02 Any wastes which may directly or indirectly impair the proper 
functioning of the Sewer System or the City of Cleveland’s Wastewater System. 

728.02.01.03 Unpolluted storm water or groundwater.

728.02.01.04  Any wastes the strength or pollution of which are not effectively 
altered by ordinary treatment processes or the presence of which in the receiving 
stream would violate state or federal water quality standards.

728.02.02  Storm water and all other unpolluted water, including infiltration and 
inflow, shall be discharged to a storm sewer or other appropriate outlet, subject to 
existing regulatory requirements including the requirement to obtain an NPDES 
Permit as applicable.

728.3 Accidental Discharges

728.03.01 Accidental discharges of prohibited waste in the Sewer System, directly or through 
another disposal system, or to any place from which such waste may enter the Sewer System, 
shall be reported to the District and City by the persons responsible for the discharge, or by 
the owner or occupant of the premises where such discharge occurred, immediately upon 
obtaining knowledge of the fact of such discharge. Such notification will not relieve users of 
liability for any expense, loss or damage to the wastewater disposal system or treatment 
process, or for any fines imposed on the District on account thereof under any state or federal 
law. The responsible person shall take immediate action to minimize or abate the prohibited 
discharge.

728.4 Monitoring 

728.04.01 Inspection and Sampling.    The District and its authorized agents bearing 
proper credentials and identification may conduct such tests as are necessary to 
enforce this Ordinance, and employees or representatives of the District may enter 
upon the utility easement of any property for the purpose of taking samples, obtaining 
information, or conducting surveys or investigations relating to such enforcement. All 
entry and subsequent work, if any, on said utility easement shall be done in 
accordance with the terms of the utility easement. Entry shall be made during normal 
business hours unless circumstances require otherwise. In all cases where tests are 
conducted by the District for the purpose of determining whether a User is in 
compliance with the applicable regulations and rules, the cost of such tests shall be 
charged to the User and added to the User's Sewer Charges if the property is found to 
be non-compliant. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 25 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 8

728.04.02   Testing Procedures.   Testing procedures for the analysis of pollutants shall 
conform to the guidelines established in 40 C.P.R. Part 136 (Guidelines Establishing Test 
Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutants), and 40 C.P.R. 403.12 (General Pretreatment 
Regulations for Existing and New Sources of Pollution). 

728.04.03   Data Practices.   Data collected by the District is subject to the Minnesota 
Government Data Practices Act (Minnesota Statute Chapter 13).

CHAPTER 729 THE ESTABLISHMENT AND COLLECTION OF CHARGES FOR USE OF 
THE DISTRICT SEWER SYSTEM

729.1 Permit Fees

For Users wishing to connect to the Sewer System after the initial project is complete, the                  
District shall require a permit fee and deposit prior to making the connection. The application 
for such a permit shall be accompanied by plans and drawings prepared by a qualified 
engineer. All connections shall be supervised by a representative of the District, at the cost of 
the applicant. All permits are conditioned on fees, costs, and charges be paid in full. 

729.2 Connection Charges for Full Connections 

729.02.01  At the time of connection, each User shall be subject to and pay applicable 
Connection Charge and SAC to the District.

729.02.02 Connection Charges paid by each User shall be determined as follows: 

729.02.02.01  Capital Costs, less grant funding and cumulative Building 
Sewer costs, for the construction of the Sewer System facilities required to 
provide service to the District. Capital charges shall be distributed among 
Users as defined by the Board.

    
729.02.02.02  The actual cost, less grant funding, of the individual Building 
Sewer installed at each connection as part of the initial project which 
provides service to each property served.

                 729.02.03  SAC and Connection Charges for Users under the initial project shall     
be assessed in accordance with the assessment certifying resolution adopted by 
the Board following the assessment hearing. Each User may prepay a portion or 
all of the SAC and Connection Charge, and have the remainder of the charges 
certified to the county auditor as an assessment against the property served by 
the connection for collection.

729.3      Connection Charges for Partial Connection

729.03.01  Users with Partial Connections shall be subject to and pay applicable 
Connection Charges  and SAC Charges to the District. Connection Charge costs will be 
assessed to the property being served. This will guarantee a future connection to the sewer 
system. 

729.03.02  Connection charges paid by each Partial Connection shall be determined as 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 26 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 9

follows: 
729.03.02.01   Capital Costs, less grant funding and cumulative Building 
Sewer costs, for the construction of the Sewer System facilities required to 
provide service to the District. Capital charges shall be distributed among 
Users as defined by the Board.

729.03.02.02  The actual cost, less grant funding, of the individual Building 
Sewer installed at each connection as part of the initial project which 
provides service to each property served.

                 729.03.02.03  SAC and Connection Charges for Users under the initial project 
shall  be assessed in accordance with the assessment certifying resolution 
adopted by the Board following the assessment hearing. Users with a partial 
connection may prepay a portion or all of the Assessment, and have the 
remainder of the assessment certified to the county auditor as an assessment 
against the property served by the connection for collection. 

729.03.02.04   The Capital Costs of any Building Sanitary Sewer and Sewer 
System facilities required to complete the connection to the sewer system shall 
be paid at the time of connection.

729.03.02.05 All equipment and materials necessary to complete a connection 
shall be of the same type and quality as used during the initial construction and 
shall be installed by the District’s maintenance contractor.

792.4          Future Connections
Future Users must request a connection to the Sewer System. Each future User shall pay the 
Connection Charge and SAC in effect at the time of the connection. No reduction in charges 
shall be provided for the grant funding utilized in the original project unless such funding still 
remains or additional funding is secured. All equipment and materials necessary to complete 
a connection shall be of the same type and quality as used during the initial construction and 
shall be installed by the District’s maintenance contractor.

729.04.01   The Capital Costs of any Building Sanitary Sewer and Sewer System facilities 
required to complete the connection to the sewer system shall be paid at the time of 
connection.

792.5  User Fees

729.05.01 User Fees shall be set by the Board, reviewed annually and adjusted as necessary. 
The User Fees shall be adopted by resolution of the Board, published in the local 
newspaper, and are effective as of the date of such publication. Subsequent changes in the 
sewer rates and charges shall be adopted by Board Resolution and published in the local 
newspaper.

729.05.02       User fees shall be charged as established by the Board and are payable 
within 30 days of receipt of the billing.

729.05.03       Determination of Monthly Service Charge

729.05.03.01   Uniform Monthly Charges. The base monthly sewer charges 
for all connections shall be set by the Board and charged to all connections as 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 27 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 10

follows:

TMC=MBC + MFC
TMC = Total Monthly Charge
MBC = Monthly Base Charge
MFC = Monthly Flow Charge

729.05.03.02     Monthly Base Charge (MBC) shall include cost allocated for 
operation and maintenance of the system, administration of the District, debt 
retirement, facility replacement and administration charges for treatment. 
MBC shall be charged to all Users, regardless of usage, as outlined in Board 
resolution setting system charges.

729.05.03.03     Monthly Flow Charge (MFC) shall include cost allocated 
based on flow discharged to the sewer system Sewer System. Monthly Flow 
Charge includes treatment charges from the City of Cleveland and any other 
additional charges as allocated by the Board. This charge is based on usage of  
sewage within the dwelling. The sewage will be metered within each 
dwelling with a metering system that is installed as part of the project. 

729.05.04    Late fees will be imposed for User Fees that are not paid on terms 
established by the District.

Additionally, if the District is required to take legal action to recover any unpaid User Fees 
or charges, the District may recover all costs incurred by it, including its actual costs of 
collection and attorneys' fees.

If the User Fees, late fees, and costs of collection are not paid to the District within 30 
days after the User has been notified of the same via U.S. Mail at their last known address, 
the District may assess the costs against the property served and for which the User Fees, 
late fees, and costs of collection remain unpaid and the same shall be transmitted to the 
county auditor and collectible with the real property taxes for such property.

The District may use any and all options for collecting unpaid fees and charges, but the 
District will not collect more than the cumulative amount of the unpaid User Fees, late 
fees, and charges.

729.05.05     Unpaid User Fees shall become a lien on the property that is served by the 
Sewer System. In the event an owner shall fail to pay User Fees as required by this 
Ordinance, the District may undertake to have said fees certified as an assessment against 
the property at an interest rate of 8% per annum to be collected and remitted to the 
District in the same manner as assessments for local improvements. The rights of the 
District under this subdivision shall be in addition to any other remedial or enforcement 
provisions of this Ordinance.

729.05.06     Delinquent Accounts and Assessments. All Accounts and charges which are 
delinquent on September 30th of any year may be certified by the County Auditor who will 
prepare and file in his or her office an assessment roll no later than November 1st of each 
year providing for the special assessment of all such delinquent accounts against the 
respective real estate, lands, tracts or parcels served or owned by such User or person 
obligated on the account. A copy of the assessment roll will be delivered to the Board for 
adoption on or before November1st of each year. Notice of the proposed assessment will 
be given not later than 14 days before the date of the first meeting of the Board in 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 28 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 11

November at which time the Board will hear all comments or objections to such 
assessments. Notice will be made by mailing a copy of the notice to the person to be 
assessed or other person obligated on the account at his or her last known address or by 
personal service stating (1) the amount of the assessment; (2) the description of the real 
estate or property sought to be assessed; (3) the date and place of the assessment hearing. 
Each assessment shall be payable on or before the first Monday of the following 
December. Interest will be charged on the assessment at the rate of 8% per year or the rate 
that is charged for assessment rolls for improvement projects adopted in the same year, 
whichever is greater and will accrue from and after the 30th day following the date of each 
delinquent Account. The owner of the assessed property may at any time prior to the 
certification of assessment, pay to the County Auditor the balance of the assessment 
covering the property with interest at the same rate as established above accrued to the date 
of payment.

Upon adoption by the Board, a certified duplicate of the assessments shall be submitted to the 
County Auditor to be placed on the property tax rolls of the County, to be collected and paid 
over in the same manner as for real estate taxes.

729.6 District Finances 

729.06.01   The District shall maintain a separate account for funds collected for the 
recovery of Capital Costs, Treatment Costs, Operations Costs, Maintenance Costs, and 
Replacement Costs. The account shall be appropriate and suitable for the deposit of 
municipal funds. 

729.06.02   The Board, its employees, and its agents shall be considered fiduciaries to the 
District in the collection, handling, deposit, investment, use and disbursement of the funds 
of the District.

729.06.03   The Board shall order an annual audit of the District's finances and provide an 
annual report to the residents of the District at a meeting held for such purpose.

729.06.04   Notice of Amendment. Prior to any amendment of this Ordinance or any 
amendment to the system of user charge established under this Ordinance, the District shall 
publish notice of the proposed amendment, at least one per week for two successive weeks, 
in a qualified newspaper in general circulation in the District.
 

729.7            Responsible for Defects
       All persons performing work in the construction or maintenance of the Sewer System shall 
       be responsible for their own errors and omissions and those of their agents, subcontractors    
       and employees. Upon notification by the District of any defects in the work or a violation of  
       any applicable requirements of the work, all such persons shall be responsible to take 
       immediate and appropriate corrective measures. If the person or persons performing the work 
       do not remedy the problems within the time frame specified by the District, the District may  
       do so and recover its expense from the responsible person.

729.8          Liability
     The District, it’s directors, officers, agents and employees shall not be liable for injuries or  
     damages of any kind or nature arising out of or related to any work of construction and  
      maintenance except, and to the extent, the District is itself legally at fault for such injuries or  
      damages. To the same extent, any contractor or other person causing the work to be   
      performed shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, it’s directors, officer,  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 29 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 12

      agents and employees of and from any such injuries or damages which may be imposed or  
      sought to be imposed on any of them, including all costs, expenses, attorneys’ fees and  
       interest incurred in any legal action or proceeding. Nothing in this Agreement shall affect or  
       otherwise constitute a waiver of the limits on the liability of the District or Le Sueur County   
       provided by Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466 (Tort Liability, Political Subdivisions) or other  
       applicable law.

729.9             Severability and Conflicts 

729.09.01 Severability.   If the provisions of any section, paragraph, or sentence of this 
Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be unconstitutional or invalid by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the provisions of the remaining sections, paragraphs, and 
sentences shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect. 

729.09.02 Conflicts.  If conflicts arise between this Ordinance and the Cleveland Code, 
the Cleveland Code shall take precedence. 

729.10          Enforcement 

        729.10.01         Unlawful Acts.
729.10.01.01   No person shall negligently, willfully, or maliciously 
break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface or tamper with any structure, 
appurtenance, or equipment which is part of the Sewer System. 

729.10.01.02   No person shall cause any buildings, sidewalks, trees or other 
encumbrances to be located in such a manner as to create a hardship for the 
District to make any repairs, alterations or installation of the Sewer System 
within the utility easement. Additional costs incurred by the
District for making such repairs, alterations or installation because of 
such encumbrances and encroachments shall be borne by the landowner.

729.10.01.03   No person shall construct, alter, or extend any sewer 
connected or proposed to be connected to the Sewer System without first 
having the plans and specifications there for approved by the District.

729.10.01.04   No person having charge of any premises shall maintain 
thereon any drain or sewer connected with the Facilities in a clogged, 
obstructed, broken or damaged condition, or not in conformance with the 
State Building Code.

729.10.01.05   No person shall discharge, or cause or permit to be 
discharged, any sewage or unhealthful matter into any lake, natural ravine, 
or public waters.

729.10.01.06  No person shall discharge wastewater, industrial wastes, or 
other wastes into the Sewer System in a form, manner, or concentration 
contrary to the provisions of this Ordinance, federal or state pretreatment 
requirements or any order of the District.

729.10.01.07  No person shall knowingly makes false statements, 
representations or certifications in any application, record, report, plan or 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 30 / 44



[15741-0031/2674129/1] 13

other document filed or required to be maintained pursuant to this Ordinance, 
or falsify, tamper with, or knowingly render inaccurate any monitoring 
device or method required under this Ordinance.

729.10.02  Suspension of Services.  The District may suspend sewer services to a User 
when, in the opinion of the District, such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or 
threatened discharge that presents or may present an imminent or substantial endangerment 
to the health or welfare of humans, to the environment, or to the Sewer System, or would 
cause the District to violate any conditions of its NPDES or state disposal system permits, or 
any other law or regulation. Any User notified of a suspension of service shall immediately 
stop discharging to the Sewer System. In the event of a failure of the User to comply 
voluntarily with the suspension order, the District shall take necessary steps, including 
immediate severance of the User's connection to the Sewer System, to prevent or minimize 
damage to the Sewer System or endangerment to any individuals. In such a case, service 
will not be reinstated unless and until the District has received proof of the elimination of 
the noncompliant discharge. A detailed written statement submitted by the User describing 
the causes of the noncompliant discharge, and the measures taken to prevent any future 
occurrence shall be submitted to the District within 5 business days of the date of the 
occurrence.

729.10.03 Notification of Violation. Whenever the District finds that any person has 
violated or is violating this Ordinance, the District may serve upon such person a written 
notice stating the nature of the violation. Within 10 days of the date of the notice, a plan for 
the satisfactory correction thereof shall be submitted to the District by said person. The 
District may impose a monthly surcharge for noncompliance with the violation notice.

729.10.04  Criminal Penalties. Any person who violates a provision of this Ordinance or 
fails to timely respond to notification of a violation shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and 
said person may be punished by a fine of up to $1,000.00 and 90 days in jail.

729.10.05 Costs and Attorneys' Fees. In addition to the penalties provided herein, the 
District may recover attorney's fees, court costs, court reporter's fees, and other expenses of 
litigation by an appropriate action against the person found to have violated this Ordinance 
or any orders, rules, regulations, and permits issued hereunder.

729.10.06  Costs of Damage. Any person violating any of the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be liable to the District for any expense, loss, or damage occasioned the District 
because of such violation. The District may commence an action for appropriate legal and 
equitable relief. The District may add to the person's User Fees the cost of any cleaning, 
repair, or replacement work caused by the violation. 

729.11 This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon adoption pursuant to Minnesota law. 

ATTEST: COUNTY OF LE SUEUR, STATE OF MINNESOTA
Darrell Pettis Lance Wetzel, Chairperson
County Administrator Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

Date: Date:

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 31 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:15 a.m. SULP Ordinance Public Hearing (15 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 32 / 44



ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS TO ESTABLISH A LOAN FUND FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 
SUBSURFACE SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS ON PRIVATELY OWNED 
PROPERTY.

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY AND SCOPE.  This Ordinance is adopted to provide for the 
creation of a public loan program that assists property owners to finance the site evaluation, 
design, installation, repair and replacement of subsurface sewage treatment systems on privately 
owned property pursuant to the authority granted under Minn. Stat. Chapter 115 and Minnesota 
Administrative Rule, Chapter 7080-7083 and as amended that may pertain to sewage and 
wastewater treatment and enforcement of standards for subsurface sewage treatment systems as 
defined in the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance.

SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS.  Unless specifically stated in this Ordinance, definitions shall be 
adopted by reference from Minnesota Statute 115 and Minnesota Administrative Rule, Chapters 
7080-7083 and as amended as previously adopted by Le Sueur County. 

SECTION 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

3.1 The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners shall establish a fund to assist 
property owners to replace residential and commercial subsurface sewage 
treatment systems in Le Sueur County.  At its discretion, the County Board of 
Commissioners shall make a contribution to the fund.

3.2 Subsurface sewage treatment system replacement shall be constructed in 
accordance with the terms of the Le Sueur County Zoning Ordinance including 
but not limited to the following provisions:

3.2a.   All repairs and improvements made to subsurface sewage treatment systems under 
this Ordinance shall be performed by a licensed and certified subsurface sewage 
treatment system professional and shall comply with Minnesota Pollution Control 
Agency rules adopted pursuant to Minn. Statute, Chapter 115.55, subdivision 3, 
and other applicable requirements.

3.3      Access to the fund is voluntary and shall result in a lien on the benefiting property 
according to the terms set forth in the Administrative Plan.  The Plan may be 
amended by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

3.4 The property owner has the right to prepay the assessment.

3.5 Administration of the Plan shall be the responsibility of the Le Sueur County 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 33 / 44



Planning and Zoning Administrator.  The County Auditor or Finance Director 
shall be responsible for administration of the lien against the benefiting property.

SECTION 4. SEPARABILITY.  If any part of this Ordinance shall be held invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, it shall not invalidate any other section, provision or part thereof.

SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 
after the date of its passage and publication according to law.

_____________________________
,Chair

Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners

____ __________________________
    DATE

ATTEST:

_______________________________
County Administrator

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 34 / 44



Revision Date: 5/2018

SEPTIC UPGRADE LOAN PROGAM ADMINISTRATION PLAN 
FOR COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES

Project Description
The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners has approved an Ordinance establishing a loan fund to 
assist commercial property owners in replacing subsurface sewage treatment systems (SSTS) in Le Sueur 
County.  This Ordinance permits Le Sueur County to administer loan funds and collect the repayment as 
a lien against the property in accordance with Minnesota Statute, Chapter 115, as amended.

Eligible Projects
Property must be a commercial property located in Le Sueur County with

 An existing non-compliant SSTS; or
 An existing compliant holding tank adding a soil treatment area to subject property.

The loan program may not be used to facilitate new building construction.  Facilitate new building 
construction includes increasing capacity of a SSTS beyond what is reasonably required to serve existing 
buildings and lots in existing recorded plats.

Applicant must be the property owner.  If it is a Contract For Deed, the Fee Owner shall also sign the 
application and lien paperwork.  

Income Requirement - none.

Terms of the Loan
Amount Eligible – 75% of the design and installation of a conforming SSTS or $75,000 maximum, 
whichever is less.  Applicant may request less than the total cost.

Interest Rate – 5%

Term Length - Loans up to $25,000 to be repaid within 10 years.  Over $25,000 to be repaid within 15 
years. 

Administrative Fee - $500.00 for Recording Fees, Processing Fees, and Mortgage Registry Tax. 

Priority of Lien – In accordance with Minnesota Statute, Chapter 115.57, Subdivision 6, “An amount 
loaned under the program and, assessed against the property shall be a priority lien only against 
subsequent liens.”  

Loan Pre-Approval
            Loan pre-approval by the Environmental Services Department is required.  To qualify for the
            loan, the following requirements must be confirmed:

           Taxes Current - No delinquent taxes may be owed against the subject property.

           Location - The property that the SSTS serves must be located within Le Sueur County.

Eligible Project

Loans will be made available on a first come, first serve basis.

Application: 
            Must be accompanied by a SSTS contractor's estimate. The administrative fee (does not include SSTS 

permit fee) must be paid at the time of application. The SSTS permit must be purchased and issued prior 
to construction of the replacement SSTS.  No loan will be approved for any work on the SSTS that has 
been done prior to loan approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 35 / 44



Revision Date: 5/2018

Final Loan Approval
Is subject to SSTS contractor's invoice and Certificate of Compliance of the SSTS installed in accordance 
with Minnesota Administrative Rule, Chapters 7080 and/or 7081 and the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance.

Installation Requirements
Site evaluation, design, and installation of SSTS must be performed by a state licensed and certified 
SSTS contractor, with the applicable license for the type of work being performed.  Selection of the 
SSTS contractor is the property owner’s choice.  

County SSTS permit, review, and approval of SSTS design required prior to any installation 
activities.

Final site inspections by a County SSTS Inspector required.

Repayment of Lien
Repayment – First payment due with the first half of the property taxes due the first January after 
construction has been completed.  Semi-annual payments with property tax payment thereafter. May 
be paid in full at any time with no prepayment penalty.  Full payment of lien must be made at time of 
sale or transfer of property.

Funding Source, Disbursement and Longevity
Funding Source - To be allocated from Waste Water Bond.

The County Board of Commissioners will do annual review of the funding allocation use and 
projected need.

Administrative Fee Disposition -
$  46.00  Recording Fee
$  0.0023  Mortgage Registry Tax, as amended

Program ends at the resolution of the County Board of Commissioners with any accrued interest to 
the general fund used to defray the cost of delinquencies or defaults and administrative costs related 
to the program.

Disbursement -
1. SSTS contractor and/or property owner submits final bill to Environmental Services 

Department.
2. SSTS contractor submits Record Drawing to Environmental Services Department.
3. Environmental Services Department completes Certificate of Compliance for the SSTS.
4. Environmental Services Department prepares lien documents, has property owner (and Fee 

Owner if Contract For Deed) sign lien documents, and forwards bill and lien documents to 
Auditor’s Department as authorization to pay SSTS contractor.

5. Environmental Services Department sends notice to property owner (and Fee Owner if 
Contract For Deed).  The notice states the following information:

a. The amount to be specially assessed against the property;
b. The right of the property owner to repay the entire assessment;
c. The public official to whom prepayment must be made;
d. The time within which prepayment must be made without the assessment of interest.
e. The rate of interest to be accrued if the assessment is not prepaid within the required 

time period; and
f. The period of the assessment.

Administrative Plan Amendment - The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, when needed, may 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 36 / 44



Revision Date: 5/2018

amend the Septic Upgrade Loan Program Administrative Plan. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 37 / 44



Revision Date: 5/2018

SEPTIC UPGRADE LOAN PROGAM 
ADMINISTRATION PLAN FOR RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES

Project Description
The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners has approved an Ordinance establishing a loan fund to 
assist residential property owners in replacing subsurface sewage treatment systems (SSTS) in Le Sueur 
County.  This Ordinance permits Le Sueur County to administer loan funds and collect the repayment as a 
lien against the property in accordance with Minnesota Statute, Chapter 115, as amended.

Eligible Projects
Property must be residential property located in Le Sueur County with

 An existing non-compliant SSTS; or
 An existing compliant holding tank connecting to a cluster; or 
 An existing compliant holding tank adding a soil treatment area to subject property.

The loan program may not be used to facilitate new building construction.  Facilitate new building 
construction includes increasing capacity of a SSTS beyond what is reasonably required to serve existing 
buildings and lots in existing recorded plats.

Applicant must be the property owner.  If it is a Contract For Deed, the Fee Owner shall also sign the 
application and lien paperwork.  

Income Requirement - none.

Terms of the Loan
Amount Eligible - Limited to not more than the total cost of designing and installing a conforming 
SSTS to $15,000 maximum.  Applicant may request less than the total cost.

Interest Rate – 4%

Term Length - Loans up to $5,000 to be repaid within 5 years.  Over $5,000 to be repaid within 10 years. 

Administrative Fee - $200.00. For Recording Fees, Processing Fees, and, Mortgage Registry Tax. 

Priority of Lien – In accordance with Minnesota Statute, Chapter 115.57, Subdivision. 6, “An amount 
loaned under the program and, assessed against the property shall be a priority lien only against 
subsequent liens.”  

Loan Pre-Approval
            Loan pre-approval by the Environmental Services Department is required.  To qualify for the
            loan, the following requirements must be confirmed:

           Taxes Current - No delinquent taxes may be owed against the subject property.

           Location - The dwelling that the SSTS serves must be located within Le Sueur County.

Eligible Project

Loans will be made available on a first come, first serve basis.

Application: 
            Must be accompanied by a SSTS contractor's estimate. The administrative fee (does not include SSTS 

permit fee) must be paid at the time of application. The permit must be purchased and issued prior to 
construction of the replacement SSTS.  No loans will be approved for any work on the SSTS that has 
been done prior to loan approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 38 / 44



Revision Date: 5/2018

Final Loan Approval
Is subject to SSTS contractor's invoice and Certificate of Compliance of the SSTS installed in
 accordance with Minnesota Administrative Rules, Chapters 7080 and/or 7081 and Le Sueur County 
Zoning Ordinance.

Installation Requirements
Site evaluation, design, and installation of the SSTS must be performed by a state licensed and 
certified SSTS contractor, with the applicable license for the type of work being performed.  
Selection of the SSTS contractor is the property owner’s choice. 

County SSTS permit, review, and approval of SSTS design required prior to any installation 
activities.

Final site inspections by a County SSTS Inspector required.

Repayment of Lien
Repayment - First payment due with the first half of the property taxes due the first January after 
construction has been completed.  Semi-annual payments with property tax payment thereafter. May 
be paid in full at any time with no prepayment penalty.  Full payment of lien must be made at time of 
sale or transfer of property.

Funding Source, Disbursement and Longevity
Source Funding - To be allocated from Waste Water Bond.

The County Board of Commissioners will do annual review of the funding allocation use and 
projected need.

Administrative Fee Disposition -
$    46.00   Recording Fee
$  0.0023   Mortgage Registry Tax, as amended

    
Program ends at the resolution of the County Board of Commissioners with any accrued interest to 
the general fund used to defray the cost of delinquencies or defaults and administrative costs related 
to the program.

Disbursement -
1. SSTS contractor and/or property owner submits final bill to Environmental Services 

Department.
2. SSTS contractor submits Record Drawing to Environmental Services Department.
3. Environmental Services Department completes Certificate of Compliance for the SSTS.
4. Environmental Services Department prepares lien documents, has property owner (and Fee 

Owner if Contract For Deed) sign lien documents, and forwards bill and lien documents to 
Auditor’s Department as authorization to pay SSTS contractor.

5. Environmental Services Department sends notice to the property owner.  The notice states 
the following information:

a. The amount to be specially assessed against the property;
b. The right of the property owner to repay the entire assessment;
c. The public official to whom prepayment must be made;
d. The time within which prepayment must be made without the assessment of interest.
e. The rate of interest to be accrued if the assessment is not prepaid within the required 

time period; and
f. The period of the assessment.

Administrative Plan Amendment
The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, when needed, may amend the Septic Upgrade 
Loan Program Administrative Plan. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 39 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:30 a.m. Environmental Services Workshop

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 40 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 9

Commissioner Committee Reports

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 41 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 10

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 42 / 44



Future Meetings
July - August 2018 

July 2018

Tuesday, July 3 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
**10:00 a.m. West Jefferson Ordinance Public Hearing
**10:15 a.m. SULP Ordinance Public Hearing
**CHB Meeting at 1 p.m. in Waterville

Wednesday, July 4 Offices Closed for Independence Day

Thursday, July 12 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Tuesday, July 17 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Thursday, July 19 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Tuesday, July 24 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

August 2018

Thursday, August 2 9:00 a.m. County Ditches 22, 35 and 49
9:30 a.m. County Ditch 54 – Le Sueur/Rice Counties
Location: Le Sueur County Courthouse, Commissioner’s Room

Tuesday, August 7 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Thursday, August 9 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Thursday, August 16 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Monday, August 20 Budget Meetings, 9:00 a.m.

Tuesday, August 21 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
**Budget Meetings to continue after the meeting.

Tuesday, August 28 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 43 / 44



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, July 3, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 11

CHB Meeting at 1:00 pm in Waterville

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 7/3/2018 Page 44 / 44


